Public Document Pack

RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL

LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES
COMMITTEE

at the Council Offices, Farnborough on
Monday, 25th January, 2016 at 7.00 pm

To:

Clir A.M. Ferrier (Chairman)
Clir S.J. Masterson (Vice-Chairman)

Clir R. Cooper
Clir Liz Corps
Clir A.H. Crawford
Clir Barbara Hurst
Clir B. Jones
Clir A.R. Newell
Clir M.D. Smith
Clir L.A. Taylor
Clir Jacqui Vosper

Enquiries regarding this agenda should be referred to the Committee Administrator,
Kathy Flatt, Democratic and Customer Services, Tel. (01252 398829) or email
kathy.flatt@rushmoor.gov.uk.




AGENDA
MINUTES — (Pages 1 - 4)

To confirm the Minutes of the Meeting held on 30th November, 2015 (copy
attached).

SELECTION OF THE MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR 2016/17 — (Pages 5 - 6)

The Chief Executive to report on the outcome of the selection process for the
Mayor-Elect and Deputy Mayor-Elect 2016/17. A copy of the criteria for the selection
process is attached for information. The Committee will be asked to make a
recommendation to the Council.

EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE — (Pages 7 - 8)

To receive the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1601 (copy attached)
which introduces the Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 2014/15
prepared by the Council’s external auditors, Ernst & Young. Mr. Alan Gregory, Assistant
Manager, Assurance - Government and Public Sector, Ernst & Young LLP will be in
attendance at the meeting.

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2016/17 AND PRUDENTIAL
INDICATORS FOR CAPITAL FINANCE - (Pages 9 - 30)

To consider the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1602 (copy to follow),
which sets out the Treasury Management Strategy 2016/17, Prudential Indicators for
Capital Finance and the Minimum Revenue Provision Statement for submission to the
Council on 25th February, 2016.

CAB-SHARING ARRANGEMENTS FOR FARNBOROUGH INTERNATIONAL
AIRSHOW 2016 — (Pages 31 - 44)

To consider the Head of Environmental Health and Housing’'s Report No.
EHH1601 (copy attached), which outlines proposals for public consultation on a cab-
sharing scheme to run for the duration of the Farnborough International Airshow 2016
(FIA16).

PAY POLICY STATEMENT - (Pages 45 - 46)
To consider the Head of Strategy, Engagement and Organisational

Development’s Report No. SEOD1601 (copy attached), which seeks approval of the Pay
Policy Statement for recommendation to the Council for adoption.

PUBLIC PARTICIPATION AT MEETINGS

Members of the public may ask to speak at the meeting on any of the items on the
agenda by writing to the Committee Administrator at the Council Offices,
Farnborough by 5.00 pm three working days prior to the meeting.




AGENDA ITEM No. 1

LICENSING AND GENERAL PURPOSES
COMMITTEE

Meeting held on Monday, 30 November 2015 at the Council Offices,
Farnborough at 7.00 pm.

Voting Members
Clir A.M. Ferrier (Chairman)
Clir S.J. Masterson (Vice-Chairman)

Clir R. Cooper
Clir Liz Corps
Clir A.H. Crawford
Clir Barbara Hurst
Clir B. Jones
Clir A.R. Newell
Clir M.D. Smith
Clir L.A. Taylor
Clir Jacqui Vosper

11. MINUTES

The Minutes of the Meeting held on 28th September, 2015 were approved and
signed by the Chairman.

12. 2014/15 ANNUAL AUDIT LETTER

The Committee received the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1519,
which set out a copy of the Annual Audit Letter, which had been issued by the Council’s
auditors, Ernst & Young.

RESOLVED: That the Annual Audit Letter be noted.
13. EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATES

The Committee received the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1523,
which included a copy of Ernst & Young’s most recent briefing for local government
committees. It was noted that some elements of the update were more relevant to
Rushmoor than others as the briefings covered issues affecting local government as a
whole, as well as a wider look at the public sector and the context in which Ernst &
Young undertook its audits.

RESOLVED: That the External Audit Updates be noted.

-13 -
Page 1



14. TREASURY MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS - MID-YEAR REPORT 2015/16

The Committee considered the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1522,
which provided details of the main activities of the Treasury Management Operations
during the first half of 2015/16, an update on the economic conditions that had affected
Treasury Management decisions and a forward look for the remainder of 2015/16.

With the exception of pooled funds, which had been managed at the discretion of
external fund managers associated with each fund, the Committee heard that all
investment activity had been carried out by the Council’s own Treasury Team, with
independent treasury advisory services from Arlingclose Ltd. It was noted that
Arlingclose had provided treasury advice to 25% of UK local authorities including
technical advice on debt and investment management and long-term capital financing.
The company had also advised on investment trends, developments and opportunities
consistent with the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy.

Members were given information on the economic background, including
information on UK economy, the global economic situation, market reaction during the
half year period and a forecast on interest rates. It was noted that Arlingclose’s
expectation for the first rise in the bank base rate remained the third calendar quarter of
2016, with a forecast of an overall interest rate of 1.7%.

The Council had been making use of a revolving infrastructure fund from the
Local Enterprise Partnership by borrowing £3 million to progress the Aldershot
regeneration schemes and £1.7 million for Ball Hill SANG. It was heard that these loans
had 0% interest. The Committee was advised that there had been potential future
borrowing requirements, however, these were to be explored as part of the financial
appraisal process of any capital investment schemes identified.

During the six months to 30th September, 2015, the Council’s return on its total
investment portfolio was 1.7%, which was amongst the highest when benchmarked
against the average of 0.87% of 122 local authority clients. It was noted that the
Council’s pooled funds had performed well and continued to generate good returns.

It was reported that the latest advice from Arlingclose was that the Council should
continue to focus on diversification of risk, spreading smaller amounts over an increasing
number of counterparties and aim to invest longer term with counterparties other than
banks. In addition to this, the Council’s in-house team had been evaluating a number of
future investment options if sufficient cash was available. These included Housing
Associations and Reverse Repurchase Agreements.

Members were advised that the Council’s budgeted investment income for the
year was estimated at £800,000. It was noted that this was a significant increase in
comparison to £500,000 in 2014/15 .The UK Bank Rate had been maintained at 0.5%
since March, 2009 and was not expected to rise until June, 2016. The Council had
anticipated an investment outturn of £849,000 for 2015/16. The position had resulted
from enhanced returns generated from existing pooled fund investments, additional
(short term NNDR) cash available to invest during 2015/16 together with increased
diversification within the Council’s investments portfolio.

The Committee was advised that 2015/16 had provided a significant challenge for
treasury management. It was confirmed that the Council had complied with its treasury

-14 -
Page 2



and prudential indicators for 2015/16, which had been set in February 2015 as part of
the Council’s Treasury Management Strategy.

RESOLVED: That the Head of Financial Services’ Report No. FIN1522 in relation
to the activities carried out during the first half of 2014/15, be noted.

The meeting closed at 7.47 pm.

CLLR A.M. FERRIER (CHAIRMAN)

-15-
Page 3



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 2

AGENDA ITEM NO. 2

CRITERIA FOR THE SELECTION OF THE MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR

The Council has established criteria for selecting the Mayor and Deputy Mayor.
The Licensing and General Purposes Committee keeps the criteria under regular
review. The arrangements are as follows:

e The position of the Mayor and Deputy Mayor of the Borough will be taken
in order of seniority from all the elected Members of the Council and will
be calculated in accordance with the procedure adopted by the Council on
20th May 1976 as follows:

“The order of seniority of Members of the Council shall be determined by
the length of previous local government service with the Council, including
past service with the former Aldershot Borough Council and Farnborough
Urban District Council. In the case where two or more Members have the
same length of service, then priority between such Members shall be
determined by the number of votes received by each Member expressed
as a percentage of the total number of ballot papers issued at the most
recent election held in their respective Wards.”

e The normal progression through the Mayoralty will be by the holding of the
position of Deputy Mayor and then progressing to the position of Mayor
the following year.

e Should an elected Member be in the position of not being able or wanting
to accept the nomination when they reach their position within the seniority
list, they will be considered in the following Municipal Year, depending on
his or her wishes.

e The Offices of Mayor and Deputy Mayor must at all times be apolitical.
The Offices should not be used for political advantage.

e Past Mayors will not be considered for the position of Mayor or Deputy
Mayor until fifteen years after the completion of the end of their Mayoral
Year; at that time their position on the seniority list will be calculated on the
basis of total length of service less fifteen years.

e A Member will not normally be selected until that Member has served a full
four year term.

e A Member will not normally be selected for Mayor or Deputy Mayor if they
are seeking re-election at that year’'s Borough Council Elections.

e Where a Member who has not been mayor before has the same number
of eligible years’ service as a Member who has already been Mayor, the

Page 5



Member who has not been mayor shall be given priority in the selection
Process.

e A Member should recognise the time required in carrying out the duties
and responsibilities of the Mayor and be able to allocate that time during
his or her year of office.

e Those considered for appointment:

0 must demonstrate a broad base of support amongst
Councillors

o should be able to demonstrate some experience of chairing
meetings

e The Mayor-Elect and Deputy Mayor-Elect will be selected at the Licensing

and General Purposes Committee on the basis of the selections being
submitted to full Council in March.

Page 6



AGENDA ITEM No. 3

AGENDA ITEM NO. 3

LICENSING & GENERAL PURPOSES HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
COMMITTEE REPORT NO. FIN1601
25TH JANUARY 2016

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE

INTRODUCTION

Ernst & Young LLP are the Council’'s appointed auditors, undertaking the audit of
Rushmoor Borough Council’s financial statements and the certification of certain
claims and returns submitted to central government or other grant-paying bodies.

While this work is governed by the statutory requirements of the Audit Commission
Act 1998 and the Code of Audit Practice for local government bodies, this does not
relieve management or the Licensing and General Purposes Committee, as those
charged with governance, of their responsibilities.

Under s.28 of the Audit Commission Act 1998, the Audit Commission made
arrangements for certifying claims and returns in respect of the 2014/15 financial
year. These arrangements require the certification of the Housing Benefits Subsidy
Claim.

The auditors have provided the following document for discussion:
- Certification of Claims and Returns Annual Report 2014/15

A representative from Ernst & Young will present the key points of the document
to the meeting and answer any questions arising.

2014/15 CERTIFICATION OF CLAIMS AND RETURNS ANNUAL REPORT

This report summarises the results of the certification work on the Council’'s major
grant claim under the Housing Benefits Subsidy Scheme for the financial year
2014/15.

The report (attached at Appendix 1) describes the work carried out and the issues
reported. | am pleased to report that the Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP) will not be amending the Council’s subsidy claim and will be awarding the
full value of the claim (£37,307,517).

Although the errors reported by the auditor have not resulted in any financial loss
to the Council, the team have taken steps to ensure that these are not repeated in
the future. The team have undertaken to carry out monthly checks on a sample of
wage claim calculations, per assessor, to ensure calculations are correct. This
addresses the recommendations set out in section 4 of Appendix 1.

Page 7



3 RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Members are requested to note the contents of this report and the attached
updates from Ernst & Young.

AMANDA FAHEY
HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Page 8



AGENDA ITEM No. 4

AGENDA ITEM NO. 4

LICENSING & GENERAL PURPOSES HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES
COMMITTEE REPORT NO. FIN1602
25TH JANUARY 2016

ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2016/17 AND
PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS FOR CAPITAL FINANCE

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 This report sets out the Treasury Management Strategy for the year 2016/17,
the Annual Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators for Capital Finance,
Minimum Revenue Provision Statement and revisions to Treasury
Management Practices.

2. PURPOSE

2.1 The purpose of the treasury management operation is to ensure that cash
flow is adequately planned, with cash being available when it is needed.
Surplus monies are invested in counterparties or instruments commensurate
with the Council’s low risk approach, pursuing optimum performance while
ensuring that security of the investment is considered ahead of investment
return. The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly
means that cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.

2.2  The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding
of the Council’s capital plans i.e. the longer-term cash flow planning to ensure
that the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.

2.3 The purpose of Prudential Indicators is to set a framework for affordable,
prudent and sustainable capital investment.

2.4  The attached appendices set out the Treasury Management Strategy and the
Council’'s Prudential Indicators for 2016/17 to 2018/19 and fulfils key
legislative requirements:

Appendix A

e The Treasury Management Strategy which sets out how the
Council’s treasury service will support capital decisions taken during
the period, the day to day treasury management and the limitations on
activity through treasury prudential indicators, in accordance with
CIPFA’s Code of Practice on Treasury Management' and Prudential
Code?;

e The Annual Borrowing Strategy which sets out the Council’s
objectives for borrowing together with the approved sources of long
and short-term borrowing and;

e Annual Investment Strategy which sets out the Council’s criteria for
choosing investment counterparties and limiting exposure to the risk of

Page 9



2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

loss, in accordance with CLG Investment Guidance.

Appendix B
e The setting of Prudential Indicators and the expected capital activities
for the period as required by CIPFA’s Prudential Code for Capital
Finance in Local Authorities?.

Appendix C
e The Council’s Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement, which

sets out how the Council will pay for capital assets through revenue
each year, as required by Regulation under the Local Government Act
2007.

These policies and parameters provide an approved framework within which
officers undertake the day-to-day capital and treasury activities.

At present, the Council’s investments are being conducted within the
parameters set in this report to minimise risk and exposure. The strategy
allows the use of a wider range of financial institutions and investments, after
due consideration of security and liquidity, to enable the generation of
improved returns. The strategy provides the flexibility to pursue a range of
diverse investment avenues within appropriate investment boundaries. This
approach fits with the latest advice from the Council’s treasury advisor,
Arlingclose.

SCOPE

This report covers the Council’s treasury management activities as set out in
paragraphs 2.1 and 2.2 above. The funds invested consist of short-term cash
available due to timing of income and expenditure i.e. from movements in
working capital, or from reserves that need to be available in the short term,
and potentially longer-term investment funds derived from the Council’s
capital receipts.

The Treasury Management Strategy does not cover the potential use of these
longer-term, core funds as that is the purpose of the capital programme. For
example, the use of capital resources for property investment would be
considered under the Capital Programme, along with other invest-to-save
schemes, on a case-by-case basis with appropriate information on risk and
return.

The Council’s in-house team continues to explore a variety of investment
options. These include expanding our portfolio of longer term investments
and investing with Housing Associations. The latest advice from Arlingclose
indicates that the Council should continue to diversify investment risk
(spreading smaller amounts over an increasing number of counterparties).

The report also explores the potential for borrowing to fund future capital
expenditure, dependent on the timing and extent of future investment plans,

Page 10



including setting limits on borrowing and prudential indicators for capital
financing.

4. RECOMMENDATIONS

4.1 Members are requested to recommend to Cabinet:

(1) approval of the Treasury Management Strategy, Annual Borrowing
Strategy and Annual Investment Strategy attached at Appendix A;

(i) approval of the Prudential Indicators set out in Appendix B; and
(i)  approval of the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement set out

in Appendix C.

AMANDA FAHEY
HEAD OF FINANCIAL SERVICES

Background papers: 1. Treasury Management in the Public Services (CIPFA)
2. The Prudential Code for Capital Finance (CIPFA)

Page 11



11

1.2

1.3

1.4

15

2.1

APPENDIX A

TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2016/17

INTRODUCTION

This strategy has been prepared in accordance with CIPFA’s Treasury
Management in the Public Sector: Code of Practice, which requires the
Council to approve a Treasury Management Strategy before the start o
each financial year.

In addition, DCLG issued revised Guidance on Local Authority Investments
in March 2010 that requires the Council to approve an Investment Strategy
before the start of each financial year.

The Council approves an annual strategy to be prepared in advance of the
year, a mid-year review and an annual report after its close. The Licensing
and General Purposes Committee is the nominated committee responsible
for the effective scrutiny of the Treasury Management Strategy and
policies.

The Council has invested sums of money and is therefore exposed to
financial risks including loss of invested funds and the revenue effect of
changing interest rates. The successful identification, monitoring and
control of risk are therefore central to the Council’s Treasury Management
Strategy.

This strategy covers:

External context

Current investment portfolio position
Annual Borrowing Strategy

Annual Investment Strategy

Specified & Non-specified Investments
Performance Indicators

EXTERNAL CONTEXT

Economic background: Domestic demand has grown robustly, supported by
real income growth and a gradual decline in private sector savings. Low oil
and commodity prices have contributed to CPI inflation falling to 0.1% in
October and GDP growth 2.3% in Q3 2015. Although speeches at the Bank of
England signalled that there may be increases in future interest rates, policy
rates have been held for 81 consecutive months. Looking forward, uncertainty
of the forthcoming EU referendum could put downward pressure on UK GDP
and interest rates. In addition, China’s growth has slowed, hence reducing
global demand and contributing to emerging market weakness. The US
Federal reserve did raised its policy rates 0.25% in December 2015, whilst the
European Central Bank embarked on Quantative Easing in 2015.

Page 12



2.2

2.3

3.1

3.2

3.3

APPENDIX A

Credit outlook: The varying fortunes of different parts of the global
economy are reflected in market indicators of credit risk. UK Banks
operating in the Far East and parts of mainland Europe have seen their
perceived risk increase, while those with a more domestic focus continue
to show improvement.

Bail-in legislation, which ensures that large investors including local
authorities will rescue failing banks instead of taxpayers in the future, has
now been fully implemented in the UK, USA and Germany. The rest of the
European Union will follow suit in January 2016, while Australia, Canada
and Switzerland are well advanced with their own plans. Meanwhile,
changes to the UK Financial Services Compensation Scheme and similar
European schemes in July 2015 mean that most private sector investors
are now partially or fully exempt from contributing to a bail-in. The credit
risk associated with making unsecured bank deposits has therefore
increased relative to the risk of other investment options available to the
Council; returns from cash deposits however remain stubbornly low.

Interest rate forecast: Arlingclose project the first 0.25% increase in UK
Bank Rate in the third quarter of 2016, rising by 0.5% a year thereafter,
finally settling between 2% and 3% in several years’ time. Persistently low
inflation, subdued global growth and potential concerns over the UK’s
position in Europe mean that the risks to this forecast are weighted
towards the downside.

CURRENT BORROWING & INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO POSITION

The Guidance on Local Government Investments in England gives priority to
security and liquidity, and the Council’s aim has been to achieve a yield
commensurate with these principles. The latest advice from Arlingclose to
counteract the increasing risk of bank bail-ins and to generate enhanced
returns as long-term interest rate forecasts remain low is to aim to invest
longer term with counterparties other than banks and to invest across a
diverse investment portfolio.

During 2015/16 the Council has generated returns from existing long-term

pooled fund investments together with diversification within the Council’'s

investment portfolio:

e £20m in pooled funds (providing a balance across a range of 5 different
types of fund)

e £2m with Lancashire County Council

e £2m with Dumfries and Galloway Council

e £6.5 with various Banks and Building Societies

The graph - Total Return on Total Investment Portfolio has been produced by
Arlingclose and demonstrates that during the six months to 30/9/2015 the
Council’s returns on total investment portfolio at 1.66% were amongst the
highest when benchmarked against their other local authority clients.

Page 13



APPENDIX A

Total Return on Total Investment Portfolio (Internal plus External Funds)

9.0%

The rate of return has been calculated as:

8.0% External pooled funds: total return (capital and income) for the year to date.
QOther investments: effective interest rate (EIR) of investments held at the
quarter end date.

7.0% Since investment portfolios change over time, this will not equal your actual
rate of return for the past year, but is a snapshot of current returns.

6.0%

5.0%

4.0%

3.0%

2.0%

1.0%

0.0% |

| =Benchmarking = Rushmoor - 30/09/2015 = CouncilX  CouncilY mCouncilZ |

Note: Highlighted Councils X, Y and Z, have similar sized investment

portfolios.

Table 1: — Existing Investment & Debt Portfolio Position

Actual Average
Portfolio Rate
£m %
Total External Borrowing 4.7 -
Total Gross External Debt 4.7
Investments:
Managed in-house-
Short-term investments 12.0 0.6
Long Term Investments 10.6 1.0
Money Market Funds 9.1 0.4
Call accounts 1.0 0.4
Managed externally-
Pooled Funds *:
Payden & Rygel’s Sterling Reserve 5.0 0.99
CCLA LA’s Mutual Investment Trust 5.0 5.23
Aberdeen Absolute Fund 3.0 2.67
UBS Multi Asset Fund 5.0 3.80
Threadneedle Investments 2.0 4.29
Total Investments 52.7

Table 1 lllustrates the Council’s investment and debt portfolio position as at

31° December 2015.

Page 14



4.1

4.2

5.

5.1

APPENDIX A

ANNUAL BORROWING STRATEGY 2016/17

The Council made use of two funds from the Local Enterprise Partnership by
borrowing £3 million to progress the Aldershot regeneration schemes in
2015/16, and £1.7million to progress the acquisition of suitable alternative
natural green space. Potential future borrowing requirements will be explored
as part of the financial appraisal process of any capital investment schemes
identified as an outcome of the ongoing 8-Point Plan work and Strategic
Projects (e.g. Regeneration Schemes). The Council may borrow to finance
investment schemes providing this does not exceed the authorised limit for
borrowing of £15 million during 2016/17.

Objectives: The Council’s chief objective when borrowing money will be to
strike an appropriately low risk balance between securing low interest costs
and achieving cost certainty over the period for which funds are required.

Sources: The approved sources of long-term and short-term borrowing are
detailed within TMP 4 (Approved Instruments, Methods and Techniques),
and are summarised below:

. Public Works Loan Board (PWLB)

. Money market loans (long term & temporary)

. any bank or building society authorised to operate in the UK

. UK Local Authorities

. UK public and private sector pension funds (except the Local
Government Pension Scheme administered by Hampshire County
Council)

. Capital market bond investors

. UK Municipal Bond Agency plc and other special purpose companies
created to enable local authority bond issues.

. Lottery monies

In addition, capital finance may be raised by the following methods that are
not borrowing, but may be classed as other debt liabilities:

. operating and finance leases
. hire purchase
. Private Finance Initiative

ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 2016/17

The Council holds significant invested funds, representing income received
in advance of expenditure plus balances and reserves held. In the past 12
months, the Council’s investment balance has ranged between £48 million
and £52 million however, levels are expected to reduced in the forthcoming
year due to the impact of business rates retention scheme on cash flows
and as capital expenditure takes place.

7
Page 15



APPENDIX A

5.2 Objectives: Both the CIPFA Code and the CLG Guidance require the
Council to invest its funds prudently, and to have regard to the security and
liquidity of its investments before seeking the highest rate of return, or
yield. The Council’s objective when investing money is to strike an
appropriate balance between risk and return, minimising the risk of
incurring losses from defaults and the risk of receiving unsuitably low
investment income.

5.3 Strategy: Given the increasing risk and continued low returns from short-
term unsecured bank investments, the Council aims to further diversify into
more secure and/or higher yielding asset classes during 2016/17, whilst
retaining short term accessibility.

5.4 Table 2 outlines the approved investment counterparties with whom the
Council may invest its surplus funds, subject to the cash, investment and
time limits shown. The schedule of approved counterparties is underpinned
by a detailed list of named counterparties. This list is maintained within
Financial Services for treasury management operational purposes.

Table 2: Approved Investment Counterparties

Investment
Counterparty Cash limit per Limit (per Time limit 1
counterparty type of
counterparty)
AAA £2m 5 Years*
AA+ £2m 5 Years*
IBankf UrE)T_eﬁucrield Whtose AA £2m 4 years*
owest published long-term )
credit rating from Fitch, AA- £2m £20m in total 3 years*
Moody’s or Standard & A+ £2m 2 years
Poor’s is: A £2m 13 months
A- £2m 6 months
BBB+ £1m 100 days
AAA £4m 20 years
AA+ £4m 10 years
AA £4m 5 years
Banks Secured whose AA- cam Unlimited 4 years
lowest published long-term
) : ) A+ £4m 3 years
credit rating from Fitch, A cam > vears
Moody’s or Standard & Y
Poor’s is: A- £4m 13 months
BBB+ £2m 6 months
BBB or
BBB- £2m 100 days
8

Page 16



APPENDIX A

(pooled funds)

Investment
Counterparty Cash limit per Limit (per Time limit t
counterparty type of
counterparty)
AAA £4m 50 Years
AA+ £4m 25 Years
AA £4m 15 Years
Govgrnment whose Iowgst AA- £am 10 Years
pu_bllshed Ior!g-term creqlt At £om Unlimited 5 Vears
rating from FItCh,’ I\/!oody sor A £om S Years
Standard & Poor’s is: A fom = Years
BBB+ £1m 2 Years
None £4m 25 Years
AAA £2m 20 Years
AA+ £2m 10 Years
AA £2m £6m in total 10 Years
Corporates whose lowest AA- om 10 Years
published long-term credit At £om 5 Years
rating from Fitch, Moody’s or
Standard & Poor’s is: A £2m 2 Years
A- £1m 13 months
BBB+ £1m 6 months
none £0.5m 5 Years
AAA £4m 20 Years
AA+ £4m 10 Years
Registered Providers whose | AA £4m 10 Years
lowest published long-term AA- £4m 10 Years
credit rating from Fitch, A+ £4m £10m in total 5 Years
Moody’s or Standard & A £4m 5 Years
Poor’s is: A- £4m 5 Years
BBB+ £4m 5 Years
None £4m 5 Years
The Council’s current account bank if it £
\ e m £2m next day
fails to meet the above criteria
UK_ Building Societies without credit £1m cam 1 Year
rating
Money market funds £5m £20m in total n/a
These funds
Collective Investment Schemes £5m per fund £20m in total do not have a

defined
maturity date

* no longer than 2 years in fixed-term deposits and other illiquid instruments

5.5 Investments may be made with banks or any public or private sector
organisations that meet the above credit rating criteria. The Council may
also invest with organisations and pooled funds without credit ratings,
following an external credit assessment and advice from the Council’s

9

Page 17




5.6

APPENDIX A

treasury management adviser.

Further information as to why certain counterparties have been included in
table 2 is set out below:

Banks Unsecured: Accounts, deposits, certificates of deposit and
senior unsecured bonds with banks and building societies, other than
multilateral development banks. These investments are subject to the
risk of credit loss via a bail-in should the regulator determine that the
bank is failing or likely to fail.

Unsecured investment with banks rated BBB or BBB- are restricted to
overnight deposits at the Council’s current account bank, which is
categorised separately in table 2.

Banks Secured: Covered bonds, reverse repurchase agreements and
other collateralised arrangements with banks and building societies.
These investments are secured on the bank’s assets, which limits the
potential losses in the unlikely event of insolvency, and means that they
are exempt from bail-in. Where there is no investment specific credit
rating, but the collateral upon which the investment is secured has a
credit rating, the highest of the collateral credit rating and the
counterparty credit rating will be used to determine cash and time
limits. The combined secured and unsecured investments in any one
bank will not exceed the cash limit for secured investments.

Government: Loans, bonds and bills issued or guaranteed by national
governments, regional and local authorites and multilateral
development banks. These investments are not subject to bail-in, and
there is an insignificant risk of insolvency. Investments with the UK
Central Government may be made in unlimited amounts for up to 50
years.

Corporates: Loans, bonds and commercial paper issued by
companies other than banks and registered providers. These
investments are not subject to bail-in, but are exposed to the risk of the
company going insolvent. Loans to unrated companies will only be
made as part of a diversified pool in order to spread the risk widely.

Investments in unrated small businesses may provide considerably
higher rates of return. They will however only be made following a
favourable external credit assessment and on the specific advice of the
Council’s treasury management adviser.

Registered Providers: Loans and bonds issued by, guaranteed by or
secured on the assets of Registered Providers of Social Housing,
formerly known as Housing Associations. These bodies are tightly
regulated by the Homes and Communities Agency and, as providers of
public services, they retain a high likelihood of receiving government
support if needed.

10

Page 18



5.7

5.8

APPENDIX A

o Money Market Funds: These funds are pooled investment vehicles
consisting of money market deposits and similar instruments. They
have the advantage of providing wide diversification of investment
risks, coupled with the services of a professional fund manager. We
will continue to use funds that offer same-day liquidity as an alternative
to instant access bank accounts, while funds whose value changes with
market prices and/or have a notice period will be used for longer
investment periods.

o Other Pooled Funds: The Council will continue to use pooled bond,
equity and property funds that offer enhanced returns over the longer
term, but are potentially more volatile in the shorter term. These allow
the Council to diversify into asset classes other than cash without the
need to own and manage the underlying investments. Because these
funds have no defined maturity date, but are available for withdrawal
after a notice period, their performance and continued suitability in
meeting the Council’s investment objectives will be monitored regularly.

Risk Assessment and Credit Ratings: The Council uses long-term credit
ratings from the three main rating agencies Fitch Ratings, Moody’s
Investors Service and Standard & Poor’s Financial Services to assess the
risk of investment default. The lowest available counterparty credit rating
will be used to determine credit quality, unless an investment-specific
rating is available. Credit ratings are obtained and monitored by the
Council’s treasury advisers, who will notify changes in ratings as they
occur. Where an entity has its credit rating downgraded so that it fails to
meet the approved investment criteria then:
* no new investments will be made with that entity
= we will recall or sell any existing investments with that entity
where we can do so at no cost
= due consideration will be given to the recall or sale of all
other existing investments with the affected counterparty.

Other Information on the Security of Investments: The Council will also
take account of other available information on the credit quality of the
organisations in which it invests, including credit default swap prices,
financial statements, information on potential government support and
reports in the quality financial press. The Council will not proceed with an
investment with an organisation if it has doubts about its credit quality,
even though it may meet the credit rating criteria.

When deteriorating financial market conditions affect the creditworthiness
of all organisations, as happened in 2008 and 2011, this is not reflected in
general credit-ratings. In these circumstances, where the Council feels the
whole market has been affected, it will restrict its investments to those
organisations of higher credit quality and reduce the maximum duration of
its investments to maintain the required level of security. If these
restrictions mean that insufficient commercial organisations of high credit
quality are available to invest the Council’s cash balances, then the surplus
will be deposited with the UK Government, or with other local authorities.

11
Page 19



6.1

6.2

6.3

APPENDIX A

This will cause a reduction in the level of investment income earned, but
will protect the principal sum invested.

SPECIFIED AND NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS

Specified Investments: The CLG Guidance defines specified investments
as those:

. denominated in pound sterling,

. due to be repaid within 12 months of arrangement,

. not defined as capital expenditure by legislation, and
. invested with one of:

o the UK Government
o a UK local authority, parish council or community council
o a body or investment scheme of “high credit quality”.

The Council defines “high credit quality” organisations as those having a
credit rating of A- or higher that are domiciled in the UK or a foreign
country with a sovereign rating of AA+ or higher. For money market funds
and other pooled funds “high credit quality” is defined as those having a
credit rating of A- or higher.

Non-specified Investments: Any investment not meeting the definition of
a specified investment is classified as non-specified. The Council does not
intend to make any investments denominated in foreign currencies, nor
any that are defined as capital expenditure e.g. company shares.

Non-specified investments at the Council are limited to longer term
investments e.g. pooled funds, or other long-term (12 months +)
investments with other LAs, banks or building societies, and investments
with bodies and schemes not meeting the definition of high credit quality.
Limits on non-specified investments are shown in table 3 below.

Table 3: Non-Specified Investment Limits

Cash limit
Total long-term investments £40m
Total investments without credit ratings or rated below A- £30m
Total non-specified investments £40m

Approved Instruments: The Council may lend or invest money using any
of the instruments detailed in Treasury Management Practice (TMP) 4,
held within Financial Services. The approved instruments are summarised
as follows:

. interest-bearing bank accounts
. fixed term deposits and loans
12

Page 20




6.4

7.1

7.2

7.3

APPENDIX A

. callable deposits and loans where the Council may demand
repayment at any time (with or without notice)

. callable deposits and loans where the borrower may repay
before maturity

. certificates of deposit

. bonds, notes, bills, commercial paper and other marketable
instruments

. shares in money market funds and other pooled funds

. reverse repurchase agreements (repos)

Investments may be either made at a fixed rate of interest, or at a variable
rate linked to a market interest rate, such as LIBOR, subject to the limits on
interest rate exposures below.

Liquidity management: The Council produces cash flow forecasts to
determine the maximum period for which funds may be committed. Limits
on long-term investments are set by reference to the Council’s medium
term financial plan and cash flow forecast.

TREASURY MANAGEMENT INDICATORS

The Treasury Management Code requires that local authorities set a
number of indicators for treasury management performance, which have
been set out below at paragraphs 7.3 to 7.5. The Council has also adopted
a voluntary measure for credit risk as set out in paragraph 7.2

Credit Risk (Credit Score Analysis): Counterparty credit quality is
assessed and monitored by reference to credit ratings. Credit ratings are
supplied by rating agencies Fitch, Standard & Poor's and Moody’s.
Arlingclose assign values between 1 and 26 to credit ratings in the range
AAA to D, with AAA being the highest credit quality (1) and D being the
lowest (26). Lower scores mean better credit quality and less risk.

The advice from Arlingclose is to aim for an average A-, or higher, average
credit rating, with an average score of 7 or lower. The scores are
weighted according to the size of our deposits (value-weighted average)
and the maturity of the deposits (time-weighted average).

Target
Portfolio average credit rating A-
Portfolio average credit score 7.0

Interest Rate Exposure: This indicator is set to monitor the Council’s
exposure to the effects of changes in interest rates. The indicator
calculates the relationship between the Council’'s net principal sum
outstanding on its borrowing to the minimum amount it has available to
invest. The upper limits on fixed and variable rate interest rate exposures

13
Page 21



7.4

7.5

8.1

8.2

APPENDIX A

expressed as the amount of net principal borrowed is:

2016/17 | 2017/18 2018/19
Upper limit on fixed interest rate £27m £23m _£18m
exposure
Upper limit on variable interest rate | g £16m £13m
exposure

It is expected that for most Councils the interest rate exposure calculation
would result in a positive figure. As the Council has more funds available
to invest than it intends to borrow, the calculation has resulted in a

negative figure.

Maturity Structure of Borrowing: This indicator is set to control the
Council’s exposure to refinancing risk. The upper and lower limits on the
maturity structure of fixed rate borrowing will be:

Upper Lower
Under 12 months 100% 0%
12 months and within 24 months 100% 0%
24 months and within 5 years 100% 0%
5 years and within 10 years 100% 0%
10 years and above 100% 0%

Time periods start on the first day of each financial year. The maturity date
of borrowing is the earliest date on which the lender can demand

repayment.

Principal Sums Invested for Periods Longer than 364 days: The
purpose of this indicator is to control the Council’'s exposure to the risk of
incurring losses by seeking early repayment of its investments. The limits
on the total principal sum invested to final maturities beyond the period end

will be:

2016/17 | 2017/18 | 2018/19

Limit on pr|n0|pa_l invested beyond year £40m £40m £40m
end at any one time

OTHER ITEMS

There are a number of additional items that the Council is obliged by
CIPFA or CLG to include in its Treasury Management Strategy.

Policy on Use of Financial Derivatives: Local authorities have previously

made use of financial derivatives embedded into loans and investments
both to reduce interest rate risk, and to reduce costs or increase income at

14

Page 22



8.3

8.4

8.5

8.6

APPENDIX A

the expense of greater risk. The general power of competence in Section
1 of the Localism Act 2011 removes much of the uncertainty over local
authorities’ use of standalone financial derivatives (i.e. those that are not
embedded into a loan or investment).

The Council will only use standalone financial derivatives (such as swaps,
forwards, futures and options) where they can be clearly demonstrated to
reduce the overall level of the financial risks that the Council is exposed to.
Embedded derivatives, including those present in pooled funds, will not be
subject to this policy, although the risks they present will be managed in
line with the overall treasury risk management strategy.

Investment Training: The needs of the Council’s treasury management
staff for training in investment management are assessed on a continuous
basis, discussed as part of the staff appraisal process and reviewed as the
responsibilities of individual members of staff change.

Staff regularly attend training courses, seminars and conferences provided
by Arlingclose and CIPFA.

Investment Advisers: The Council appointed Arlingclose Limited as
treasury management advisers in April 2013, and receives specific advice
on investment, debt and capital finance issues. The quality of this service
will be reviewed on an ongoing basis as part of the process of monitoring
the Council’s investment portfolio. Arlingclose have been successful in
securing the Council’s Treasury Advisory contract for a further 3 years
from April 2016, following a procurement exercise.

Investment of Money Borrowed in Advance of Need: The Council may,
from time-to-time, borrow in advance of need, where this is expected to
provide the best long-term value for money. Since amounts borrowed will
be invested until spent, the Council is aware that it will be exposed to the
risk of loss of the borrowed sums, and potential interest rate changes.
These risks will be managed as part of the Council’s overall management
of its treasury risks.

The total amount borrowed will not exceed the authorised borrowing limit
of £15 million during 2016/17. The maximum period between borrowing
and expenditure is expected to be two years.

Financial Implications: The budget for investment income in 2016/17 is
£850k, based on an average investment portfolio of £35 million at interest
rates ranging from 0.4% liquid MMF and other short-term investments to
5.25% long-term pooled property investment fund. Performance of
investments against budget will be reviewed on an ongoing basis and as
part of our quarterly budget monitoring process. The investment income
will reduce depending on the pace and size of capital expenditure that
arises from the 8-Point Plan work and strategic projects as mentioned in
section 4.1.

15
Page 23



8.7

APPENDIX A

Other Options Considered: The CLG Guidance and the CIPFA Code do
not prescribe any particular treasury management strategy for local
authorities to adopt. The Chief Finance Officer believes the above strategy
represents an appropriate balance between risk management and cost
effectiveness. An alternative strategy might be to invest in a narrower
range of counterparties and/or for shorter periods. The likely impact of this
alternative would be lower interest income alongside a reduced risk of loss
from credit-related defaults. Investing in a wider range of counterparties
and/or for longer periods would result in the opposite impact i.e. interest
income would be higher but there would be a greater risk of loss.

16

Page 24



APPENDIX B

PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s Prudential Code for
Capital Finance in Local Authorities (the Prudential Code) when determining
how much money it can afford to borrow. The objectives of the Prudential
Code are to ensure, within a clear framework, that the capital investment
plans of local authorities are affordable, prudent and sustainable, and that
treasury management decisions are taken in accordance with good
professional practice. To demonstrate that the Council has fulfilled these
objectives, the Prudential Code sets out the following indicators that must be
set and monitored each year.

1. Estimates of Capital Expenditure: The Council’'s planned core
capital expenditure and financing may be summarised as follows:

Capital Expenditure and 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

apital Exp Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Financing

£m £m £m £m

General Fund 9.340 8.802 5.317 1.150
TOTAL EXPENDITURE 9.340 8.802 5.317 1.150
Capital Receipts 5.780 5.477 3.470 (0.037)
Capital Grants & 2.401 2575 1.097 0.437
Contributions
Revenue 1.159 0.750 0.750 0.750
Borrowing 0 0 0 0
TOTAL FINANCING 9.340 8.802 5.317 1.150

The Council’s core capital expenditure programme has been evaluated and
comprises of affordable, prudent and sustainable items. In addition to this, the
Council can foresee the need to progress expenditure on Invest to Save
schemes (as part of the 8-Point Plan) and strategic projects such as
regeneration schemes. These schemes will be evaluated and presented to
Cabinet individually, before inclusion on the Capital programme.

Indicative values for these future schemes are demonstrated below. Whilst
additional grants and capital receipts may fund some of the expenditure,
borrowings will be required.

Indicative Capital 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

) P Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Expenditure

£m £m £m £m
Invest To Save schemes 0 8.200 3.000 8.100
Strategic programme 0 0.300 10.000 9.000
Total expenditure 0 8.500 13.000 17.100
17

Page 25



APPENDIX B

2. Estimates of Capital Financing Requirement: The Capital Financing
Requirement (CFR) measures the Council’s underlying need to borrow
for capital purposes.

31.03.16 | 31.03.17 | 31.03.18 | 31.03.19

Capital Financing Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate

Requirement

£m £m £m £m
General Fund 4.7 4.1 34 2.6
Total CFR 4.7 4.1 34 2.6

Based on its core Capital Programme, the Council will be able to finance
all of its core capital expenditure without the need to borrow, other than its
existing use of Local Enterprise Partnership funding.

Should the indicative projects described above be implemented, the total
indicative CFR will be as follows:

31.03.16 | 31.03.17 | 31.03.18 | 31.03.19
Estimate | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m

Capital Financing
Requirement

Total CFR if
Indicative Projects 4.7 4.3 15.0 29.9
are implemented

3. Gross Debt and the Capital Financing Requirement: In order to
ensure that over the medium term debt will only be for a capital
purpose, the Council should ensure that debt does not, except in the
short-term, exceed the total of capital financing requirement in the
preceding year plus the estimates of any additional capital financing
requirement for the current and next two financial years. This is a key
indicator of prudence.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Debt Revised Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 4.7 4.1 3.4 2.6
Total Debt 4.7 4.1 3.4 2.6

The Council made use of two Local Enterprise Partnership Infrastructure
Funds in 2015/16 of £4.7m. Of which, £3m will be repaid over a seven
year period from capital receipts received from the developer. The
remaining £1.7m will be repaid over a five-year period.

Should the indicative projects be implemented as well as the core
schemes, the total indicative Debt could be as follows:

18
Page 26



APPENDIX B

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Debt Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Total Indicative Debt 4.7 4.3 15.0 29.9

4. Operational Boundary for External Debt: The operational boundary

is based on the Council’s estimate of most likely ( i.e. prudent, but not
worst-case) scenario for external debt. It links directly to the Council’s
estimates of core capital expenditure, the capital financing requirement
and cash flow requirements, and is a key management tool for in-year
monitoring. Other long-term liabilities comprise finance leases, Private
Finance Initiatives and other liabilities that are not borrowing but form
part of the Council’s debt.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 | 2018/19
Operational Boundary | Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0
Total Debt 5.0 5.0 5.0 5.0

5. Authorised Limit for External Debt:

The authorised limit is the

affordable borrowing limit determined in compliance with the Local
It is the maximum amount of debt that the

Government Act 2003.

Council can legally owe. The authorised limit provides headroom over
and above the operational boundary for unusual cash movements. The
estimate for 2016/17 onwards takes account of the borrowing from the
Local Enterprise Partnership, together with any variations in the
borrowing requirements to support some of the key Invest to Save
schemes (as part of the 8 Point Plan) and other strategic projects,
which have yet to be fully developed, and are not reflected within the
core capital programme.

2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Authorised Limit Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
£m £m £m £m
Borrowing 9.0 14.0 18.0 20.0
Other long-term 1.0 1.0 1.0 1.0
liabilities
Total Debt 10.0 15.0 19.0 21.0

6. Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream: This is an
indicator of affordability and highlights the revenue implications of
existing and proposed “core” capital expenditure by identifying the

19

Page 27



APPENDIX B

proportion of the revenue budget required to meet financing costs, net
of investment income.

Ratio of Financing 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Costs to Net Revenue Revised | Estimate | Estimate | Estimate
Stream % % % %
General Fund -7 -5 -5 -5

7.

The ratio is negative as the Council currently has net interest income.

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions: This is an
indicator of affordability that shows the impact of capital investment
decisions on Council Tax levels. The incremental impact is the
difference between the total revenue budget requirement of the current
approved capital programme and the revenue budget requirement
arising from the capital programme proposed.

Incremental Impact of Capital 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
p. . P Estimate Estimate Estimate

Investment Decisions c c c

General Fund - increase in

annual band D Council Tax 4.75 2.67 2.55

Adoption of the CIPFA Treasury Management Code: The prudential
indicator in respect of treasury management is that the Council adopt
CIPFA’s Treasury Management in the Public Services: Code of
Practice and Cross-Sectoral Guidance Notes. The aim is to ensure that
treasury management is led by a clear and integrated forward treasury
management strategy, with recognition of the existing structure of the
Council’s borrowing and investment portfolios. The revised edition of
the Code (November 2011) was adopted by the Council on 20"
February 2014.

20

Page 28




11

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

APPENDIX C

MINIMUM REVENUE PROVISION STATEMENT

Where the Council finances capital expenditure by debt, it must put aside
resources to repay that debt in later years. The amount charged to the
revenue budget for the repayment of debt is known as Minimum Revenue
Provision (MRP), although there has been no statutory minimum since
2008.

The Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to
the Department for Communities and Local Government’s Guidance on
Minimum Revenue Provision (the CLG Guidance) most recently issued in
2012.

The broad aim of the CLG Guidance is to ensure that debt is repaid over
a period that is either reasonably commensurate with that over which the
capital expenditure provides benefits, or, in the case of borrowing
supported by Government Revenue Support Grant, reasonably
commensurate with the period implicit in the determination of that grant.

The CLG Guidance requires the Council to approve an Annual MRP
Statement each year, and recommends a number of options for
calculating a prudent amount of MRP. This statement only incorporates
options recommended in the Guidance.

For any unsupported capital expenditure incurred after 31%' March 2008,
MRP will be determined by charging the expenditure over the expected
useful life of the relevant assets, starting in the year after the asset
becomes operational. MRP on purchases of freehold land will be charged
over 50 years. MRP on expenditure not related to fixed assets, but which
has been capitalised by regulation or direction, will be charged over 20
years.

For assets acquired by finance lease or private finance initiative, MRP will
be determined as being equal to the element of the rent or charge that
goes to write down the balance sheet liability.

Where loans are made to other bodies for their capital expenditure, no
MRP will be charged. However, the capital receipts generated by the
annual repayments on those loans will be put aside to repay debt instead.

Rushmoor is currently debt-free and the Council can finance its core
capital expenditure without borrowings. However, as indicated in the
Medium Term Strategy the Council can foresee the need to progress
expenditure on Invest to Save schemes (as part of the 8-Point Plan) and
other strategic projects. In which case, borrowings will be required and
MRP will arise.

21
Page 29



APPENDIX C

During 2015/16, the Council made use of two revolving infrastructure
funds from the Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP). This did not give rise
to MRP.

1.9 The implementation of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
has meant that the accounting treatment for assets used within major
contracts may result in embedded finance leases appearing on the
Balance Sheet, leading to a requirement for MRP. This is purely an
accounting requirement and does not give rise to any requirement to
borrow to fund these assets. For 2016/17, no such embedded finance
leases are envisaged.

22
Page 30



AGENDA ITEM No. 5

AGENDA ITEM NO. 5

LICENSING & GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
25TH JANUARY 2016

1.0

11

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.0

3.1

DIRECTORATE OF COMMUNITY
COMMUNITY & ENVIRONMENT
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH SERVICES
REPORT NO. EHH1601

CAB-SHARING ARRANGEMENTS FOR
FARNBOROUGH INTERNATIONAL AIRSHOW 2016

INTRODUCTION

This report outlines proposals and subsequently seeks Member approval for public
consultation on a cab-sharing scheme to run for the duration of the Farnborough
International Airshow 2016 (FIA16).

BACKGROUND

Licensing authorities are empowered to set up schemes under which licensed taxis
may be used for shared hire. These powers were first used in Rushmoor for the
Farnborough International Airshow 2004 (FIA04) when a cab-share scheme was
implemented between the Farnborough Station and Cross Street, Farnborough.
While destinations have varied, similar schemes have also been established for
each Airshow since.

Following discussions with the Taxi Trade, the Council has received requests to
implement a cab-sharing scheme for the duration of the trade and public days of
FIA16 (11" - 17" July 2016).

Normally, licensing authorities have discretion over whether or not to make such a
scheme. However, they are required to do so if requested by the holders of at least
10% of current taxi licence holders (albeit the form and nature of any such scheme
remains at the discretion of the authority). Significantly and by virtue of the 40
signatory petition given at appendix A, requests to this effect have been received.
NB: In compliance with Data Protection Act requirements, this correspondence has
been redacted where appropriate.

PROCEDURE FOR MAKING A CAB-SHARE SCHEME
The procedure to be followed in making a cab-sharing scheme is laid down in the
Taxis (Schemes for Hire at Separate Fares) Regulations 1986. These Regulations

require the authority to obtain the consent of the highway authority and/or the
landowner in respect of any place that is not on the highway.

1 Page 31



3.2

4.0
4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

4.5

The authority is also required to consult the local chief constable of Police and local
County Council, together with local taxi owners, drivers and/or their
representatives. It is also required to publish the proposed scheme and invite
public representations; considering such representations as may be appropriate
before implementing its preferred arrangements.

PROPOSED ARRANGEMENTS

The request of the taxi trade proposes that the FIA16 scheme be established and
run on a similar basis to that operated during the 2014 Airshow. This is a relatively
simple scheme and builds on those run in previous years since FIAO4. The
proposed scheme is outlined below.

Authorised Places

The trade are requesting that a scheme be established for return journeys between
the official Airshow rank (Rank A) and the Farnborough main-line station (Rank B).
The Airshow rank is a temporary taxi rank established for the duration of the
Airshow on the Airshow site which, subject to show planning arrangements, will be
located on land just off the Queens Gate Road, Farnborough. These two points,
between which the scheme is proposed to operate, are shown at appendix B.

Signs on Vehicles and Authorised Places

It is proposed that every vehicle standing for hire under the terms of the scheme be
obliged to display and carry a notice indicating that the vehicle is available for
shared hire between the authorised points. This will be in addition to the signs and
notices presently required under the conditions of each taxi vehicle and driver’s
licence.

It is similarly proposed that the authorised places (Ranks A and B) be designated
by specified signage to provide prospective passengers with information on the
operation of the shared taxi scheme, together with fare tables, the times of its
operation and other relevant information.

Exclusive and Shared Compellability

It is proposed that the scheme will run on both a shared and exclusive basis. The
existing right of the hirer of a taxi to demand an exclusive service and to be carried
to any other place will remain. However, passengers who wish to share the vehicle
for journeys between the authorised places (see above) would be afforded ‘shared
compellability’ arrangements.

Page 32 2



4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

5.0

5.1

6.0

6.1

Fares

In accordance with Department for Transport (DfT) guidance, any scheme for
shared fares should offer an incentive both to the taxi proprietor and passengers.
Such a scheme should ensure that the driver receives more in fares than for an
exclusive hire and that each passenger pays less.

As in previous years, the trade propose a flat fare cab-share system; charging
£4.00 per person up to a maximum of four people in each taxi. As per the journey
assessment given at appendix C, a typical fare (in accordance with existing fare
chart charges) between the given destination points ranges between £5.10 and
£6.30 dependent on the route taken.

This assessment has been provided as traffic flow routes in, out and around the
Airshow site have not yet been confirmed. However, having taken account of all
possible routes between the authorised points, the assessment shows that a
standard exclusive journey would ordinarily cost more than the proposed cab-share
scheme and therefore accords with DfT guidelines.

Marshalling

It is proposed that marshals regulate the operation of the cab-sharing scheme,
attending the Farnborough station rank in the morning and the official Airshow rank
in the afternoon in accordance with peak demands and the general flow and
migration of customers. Marshals will either —

a) consist of volunteers from the trade, subject to agreement that benefiting taxi
drivers pay the marshals £1 per cab-share from their own proceeds; or

b) subject to trade funding, be employed from the company that previously
operated the Aldershot Safety Marshalling scheme (or similar).

NECESSARY CONSENTS

At the time of writing, statutory consultees have not yet made any comment on the
proposals. However, any comments that may be received may be considered with
any representations following any period of public consultation (outlined above).
However, the Highways Authority and those with relevant land interests have
confirmed their approval of the proposals by virtue of the correspondence given at
appendix D.

CONCLUSIONS
A cab-share scheme offers the opportunity of a ‘win-win’ situation for taxi drivers,
proprietors and passengers alike. Such a scheme provides an opportunity to

improve public transport options at reduced costs to the customer whilst permitting
the taxi trade to benefit from and widen its market at a time of peak demand.

3 Page 33



6.2 The proposed scheme is relatively simple and straightforward and generally builds
upon and compliments the traffic arrangements used to accommodate the Airshow.
Similar schemes have been implemented for previous shows.

7.0 FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

7.1 While the Council may incur some limited administrative costs in terms of
necessary consultations and provision of appropriate signage, there are no
significant financial implications associated with this report. All costs can be borne
by existing budgets.

8.0 RECOMMENDATIONS

8.1 The Committee is requested to provisionally approve the proposed cab-sharing
scheme for public consultation and local advertisement as outlined above.

QAMER YASIN
HEAD OF ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH & HOUSING
Environmental Health & Housing Services

Background Papers: Department of Transport (DoT), Circular 7/86
Taxis (Schemes for Hire at Separate Fares) Regulations 1986

Contact: John McNab, Environmental Health Manager (Licensing)
Tel: 01252 398886, Email: john.mcnab@rushmoor.gov.uk

Appendices:
[ Appendix | [Title | |_Page
A Petition requesting cab-share scheme for FIA16 Page 5
B Plans showing proposed authorised places Page 7
C Journey Assessment - Fares of possible journeys between Page 9
authorised places
D Letters of consent Page 11

Page 34 4



APPENDIX A

PETITION REQUESTING CAB-SHARE SCHEME FOR FIA16

To TAXI LICENCING AT RUSHMOOR BOROUGH COUNCIL,
From TI-H? TAjﬁ TRADE
Ref: CAD SHARING, FARNBOROUGH ATRSHOW 2016
We the undersigned ask that you approve cab sharing for FIA16 af the rate of £16 for
4 people between Famborough Main Line and the Airshow Drop-off point, plus
Airshow Taxi Raok to Farnboreugh Main Line,
Printaame Signuture Badge uumber e
(] P HapStdle | @00 (AU
| Mottt p1ag - ASH H23 e, @] (3/
Mokt beawe 667 \M'm)f\‘
-U’\ku\“.m; s st Hos !L\, 12 " g
M Qbannff 9us s
R [Reissey 25D, s/ 1s
P et © 571 g fie) 1
L Reuats 210 i/uns
Badse S 4n} }q,/ 12 / .
= s szl 1412 15
M ArusTroUS z2e) .44/1&/ v
SR o Vo6 1y zz,_/fﬁ
T eSS HEA G0 fefifis
0 - & 7 igfr2|es
4. Fomto 222 wafizfis
. Fropmans toz. M/.L]f.:,“""
| ¢ Cflaved o g (]S
43 Doss ren Moy el f s ‘
M EeengTon iy e
|
5 Page 35



" | FAIl6 Continued ,,.

page 2 of 2

D-O.CAMM

. Qo1

O 8T

oV S

Fowo- Qossirem

S Eviens
F"T ‘RQX‘@

D2

=6

P\ Funes

® \w\@wlé

sS4
EES

R" : L\.MM )

L&

OOLZ

Mg

i< Uadie

43

B Coget

22

FA= ,Q_Awéi’a

Al

427

S’.JQ«G!\; Al

o SMED

AT %

A__f ST Gt

PR

379

A& AL

32

st thupe

- wondE

SHAkzeL. TIYAS

AL

| 42

Q\Quﬂgﬂ Nve

AL

“q

AWDV #}T&;’Q{m»/

M0

[y)refis
nelizfys
wfi2) g
vyl o5
JpARAS
w2l s
‘%)tZ}{:{
iy e (S
We-fref 18
G- 12t
f4/r &({5(
il of 157
Itj 2~ /\5‘\
NS

AL

1 jrz /s
TRITAES
Vg e f i
il 2)hs

Page 36




APPENDIX B

PLANS SHOWING PROPOSED AUTHORISED PLACES

N

T=

RANK A
Queens Gate Road
Farnborough

Proposed location to be authorised as a pick-up or
destination point for proposed cab-sharing scheme
for Farnborough International Airshow 2016
(FIA16).

(NB: Also used for FIA12 and FIA14)

’CI @ Crown Copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100024264

7 Page 37



@ Crown Copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey 100024264

A

Page 38



APPENDIX C

JOURNEY ASSESSMENT
FARES OF POSSIBLE JOURNEYS BETWEEN PROPOSED AUTHORISED PLACES

uonels
ybBnoloquie
. 09°€3 = £'55LAZEL1-016€).02°0F | spied 155 yoeg . 12215 uolun ‘peoy ybnoloquiey ‘pecy
0£°93 0423 | spaef zeL | isug SPAOLG'E g0 v JSN0OH USWIWSA0S) ‘PEOY 3B su3anp oL
peoy
ajen suaanp
uonels
ybBnoloquie
. 0773 = L'SSIAZEL1-0622).02°03 | spied 1'G5) yoeg . 1220s uolun ‘peoy ubnosoquied
06’73 0423 | spaef zeL | isug spAosLE a0v ‘peoy vy ‘PEOY 31ED SUI3ND oL
peoy
ajen suaanp
uonels
yBnoloquieq
T3 = 4S5 - ).02 spueh - bl jsans
013 0vZ3 = £'551(2€11-0882).02°03 | P4 p 1551 yaeg sphge‘z goly uolun ‘peoy ybnologuie ‘(sucieg ol
0.°73 | spaehggl ) isid BIA) SNUDN .
1 V J2IM04 ‘peOY 3B SU2aND
peoy
a)es suaanp
uonels
1220S UOIUM ‘PEoY 3A0ID) yBnoloquieq
IR . . . W3 ‘peoy BUOIA ‘PEIWSIAN Yied
06'S3 07°€3 = 1'551/(2e11-525€).02°03 mEmemF Yyoeg SpAGIG'e gory 18D VASY ‘PECY UOIIEOS INOGEpUNcy ol
0LT3 | SpIEAZEL | Is1d .
12z|ng ‘(abBeliA 21 BIA) pEOY ISInyauld
‘aNuUany 1Mo ‘peoy aleD) sua2an peoy
ajen suaanpd
uonels
19a11S Uoun yBnouoquuey
. 07'€3 = L'SSIAZEL1-555€).02°03 | spied 1'G5) yoeg . ‘peoy ybnoloquiey ‘anuaay uopnapy
06°53 0L73 | spaeh zgl L asidg SPAGSS'E qa0v ‘(abema aul eln) peoy 1sinyauld ol
‘anuany 13|mo4 ‘peoy 219 su3anD peoy
ajen suaanp
NN TATE =]
S3IE) JO SUBYDS
10 | 3By Uo paseq) o (spieA)
(€171 1'BE WOY SANISYS S2IBY JO BLUSYIS JO | SjEY LD paseq) (S)MNVYY
E-LE NOLLY1ND1VD 3uv4 JONVL1SsIa a3S040Nd YIA 3LNOYH Ol /INOHd
JLYNIXOHddY X0odddy
Y10l

S31NO0Y ONIAYVA 40 SAINAJNOr IXVL 40 1S0D 3V B JONVLSIA 40 LNIJWSSISSV

Page 39



Page 40

10



LETTERS OF CONSENT

APPENDIX D

From:Roger Walker

Sent:Mon, 21 Dec 2015 11:30:25 +0000
To:John Mcnab

Subject:Taxi Rank A - FI12016

John

With ref to your letter dated 14 Dec 2015 ref 15/03294/TAXGEN | can confirm that as landowners TAG
have no objection to the use of Taxi Rank A.

Rgds

Roger Walker

Director Airport Operations

TAG Farnborough Airport

Direct Dial: + 44 (0)1252 379007

www.tagfarnborough.com

Vv 4

Farnborough
Airport

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

11

Page 41



ARichards(@swtrains.co.uk

From:ARichards@swtrains.co.uk

Sent:Tue, 5 Jan 2016 13:00:54 +0000

To:John Menab

Subject: Taxis (Schemes for hire at separate fares) regulations 1986 - Farnborough
International Airshow 2016Dear John.

T am writing to you In regards to your letter dated the 14th December 2015 regarding the implementation of
a cab sharing scheme during the Farnborough International Airshow (11th to 17th July 2016).

I am pleased to advise you that as we are the Leaseholder of Farnborough Main railway station, Stagecoach
South Western Trains is able to give you full consent to carry out this scheme.

If you require any further assistance please do not hesitate to contact me.
Regards

Adele Richards
Retail Standards Department
South West Trains

This email has been scanned by the Symantec Email Security.cloud service.
For more information please visit http://www.symanteccloud.com

Page 42

12




i

% Hampshire

FECD :
| County Council
‘1 REFERED YO e '
,,,,,,, - R Highways, Troflic ond Transpart
Mr J MCNab Moterway Compound
Rushmeor Borough Councll Homoshire RG27 9A4
Council Offices
Farnborough Road Tel: 0300 555 1388 (Roods und Transpory
Famboraugh 0300 555 1390 (Textphone]
. Email: recds@hants.gov.uk
Hampshire
GU14 74U
Enquiries to J. Holt - My reference 11012686
Direct line ) Yous reference 1 5/03294/TAXGEN
Doze - 06 January 2018 Emal 'Highways-transport. north@hants.gov.uk -
Dear Mr McNab,

Re: Taxis (schemes for hire at separate fares) regulations 1986,
Farnborough international Airshow 2016.

Thank you for your letter dated the 14" December 2015 conceming the proposad
arangements for laxi hire during the Farnborough Airshow.

| can confirm that the County Council as the highway authority has no concemns (o
raise In respect of thesa changes.

Yours sincerel

Highways Manager

Head of Highweys (Area Offices)- ’
Tim Lawton BEng CEng FICE MCIHT

Dirgctor of Ecanemy, Transport and Environment
Stuart Jarvis BS¢ DipTP FCIHT MRTPIE

Call chargas apply. For fformation see waww3 hants gov.uideontactus/callcharges
" Youir name and address will be recordad in our database and may be made available to others only in
accordance with the Data Prolection Act

13 Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



AGENDA ITEM No. 6

AGENDA ITEM NO. 6

LICENSING AND GENERAL HEAD OF STRATEGY, ENGAGEMENT
PURPOSES COMMITTEE AND ORGANISATIONAL
25TH JANUARY 2016 DEVELOPMENT

1.1

1.2

1.3

2.1

2.2

2.3

3.1

REPORT NO. SEODO0O1

PAY POLICY STATEMENT
INTRODUCTION

A pay policy statement must be published every year under the requirements
contained within the Localism Act.

The purpose is to compare the remuneration of the highest and lowest paid
employees of the Council.

The format of this report follows the approach which has been taken in all of
the previous years that this data has been collated and published.

SCOPE

The pay policy statement contains two main components. It sets out the
framework within which pay is determined in Rushmoor Borough Council and
it provides an analysis comparing the remuneration of the Chief Executive
with others employed by the authority.

The comparisons included within the paper, look at the ratio between the Chief
Executive and the full time equivalent salary for a permanent member of staff
employed in the lowest grade within our structure. The ratio is 7.5:1 which is
slightly lower than when the exercise was undertaken last year, when it was
7.6:1.

A series of other ratios are contained with the report. One undertakes the
analysis by using the mean and median salaries for all staff, and an
alternative does the exercise again but excludes Directors and Heads of
Service from the calculation. There has been no significant change in any of
these ratios over the last 12 months.

RECOMMENDATION

The Committee is requested to recommend the Pay Policy Statement 2016/17
for adoption by the Council.

KAREN EDWARDS
HEAD OF STRATEGY, ENGAGEMENT AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Background papers: Pay Policy Statement 2016/17

Page 45



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1 MINUTES
	2 SELECTION OF THE MAYOR AND DEPUTY MAYOR 2016/17
	3 EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE
	LICENSING & GENERAL PURPOSES COMMITTEE
	EXTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE 
	1 INTRODUCTION

	4 ANNUAL TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY 2016/17 AND PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS FOR CAPITAL FINANCE
	5 CAB-SHARING ARRANGEMENTS FOR FARNBOROUGH INTERNATIONAL AIRSHOW 2016
	6 PAY POLICY STATEMENT
	2. SCOPE
	2.2     The comparisons included within the paper, look at the ratio between the Chief       Executive and the full time equivalent salary for a permanent member of staff employed in the lowest grade within our structure. The ratio is 7.5:1 which is s...
	2.3 A series of other ratios are contained with the report. One undertakes the analysis by using the mean and median salaries for all staff, and an alternative does the exercise again but excludes Directors and Heads of Service from the calculation. T...
	3. RECOMMENDATION
	3.1 The Committee is requested to recommend the Pay Policy Statement 2016/17 for adoption by the Council.
	KAREN EDWARDS
	HEAD OF STRATEGY, ENGAGEMENT AND ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT
	Background papers: Pay Policy Statement 2016/17


